
CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD 
TOWN HALL 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
NOVEMBER 26, 2012 

 
APPROVED 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Charles Russell, Chair; John Owen, Ed Stone,  
Winslow Ladue, Dennis Delaney (departed 9:35 p.m.). 
ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Selectboard Assistant. 
OTHERS:  Sara Munro, David Mullin, Ellie Russell, Tony Blake, Gordon Brown, Marty 
Illick, Hugh Lewis Jr, Dick Hoskin, Moe Harvey, Mary Mead, Katie Palmer, Stephen 
Brooks, David Marshall, Larry Hamilton, Bill Harris-Fraser, Robin Pierce, David 
Miskell, Deb Stone, Bruce Bushey, JoAnn Cummings, Sue Hodgson, John Hammer, 
Charlotte News; Carol Casey, Charlotte Citizen, and others. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO AGENDA 
No Changes. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mr. Blake, Orchard Road resident, reviewed a written memo, dated 11/26/2012, 
regarding a 35 mph speed limit sign on Orchard Road. The residents on the road would 
like to lower the speed limit to 25 mph, or remove the sign for safety reasons. The sign 
was newly installed, said Mr. Blake. 
 
Mr. Russell asked staff to put a review of the Orchard Road speed limit on a future 
agenda. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR A VERMONT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION TO HELP FUND CONSTRUCTION OF 
FIVE AFFORDABLE DWELLINGS – action item  
Mr. Mullin and Ms. Munro, Green Mountain Habitat for Humanity representatives, 
appeared before the Selectboard. 
 
Mr. Russell asked for an update on the grant administration workload that would be 
required by the Town Treasurer. 
 
Ms. Mead, Charlotte Town Clerk/Treasurer, stated that it would be a purely Selectboard 
decision. For her personally, she felt it was not a Town project. It was a Habitat for 
Humanity project. The grant administration duties were not a part of running the business 
of the Town. She felt it would take more than one hour per month and cutting just one 
check, said Ms. Mead. Mr. Mullin explained that Habitat for Humanity has done several 
reimbursement projects. The job would take one hour per month, said Mr. Mullin. 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 2 

 
Ms. Mead said that she contacted the Hinesburg Town Clerk. An accountant who did the 
town books was hired to do the work. The Chelsea Town Treasurer, who was solely a 
treasurer, did the work for that town. Ms. Mead said she was also the Town Clerk with 
that set of jobs plus the Town Treasurer. 
 
Mr. Mullin said that their task was to locate other people who could tell Ms. Mead what 
the monthly time commitment was for the job. The Selectboard was looking to Ms. Mead 
to say if she was willing to do the job. The federal dollars were only available to the 
GMHFH if a municipality applied for the grant, said Mr. Mullin. 
 
Mr. Harvey said that Karen Winchell had said she would be in touch with Hinesburg and 
Chelsea for Ms. Mead to talk to. That didn’t happen. Mary worked by herself to contact 
those people. Neither the Saputo Cheesefactory, nor the Chelsea project was an 
affordable housing project. The Town would need to post a fidelity bond. Hinesburg and 
Chelsea didn’t need a bond. Mary said she would do it if the Selectboard wanted her to, 
said Mr. Harvey. 
 
Ms. Munro explained that a fidelity bond was required if any one disbursement exceeded 
$100,000. The Town was insured through the Vermont League of Cities and Towns, and 
uses an FDIC insured bank. A bond was a part of the VLCT insurance, said Ms. Munro. 
 
Mr. Ladue asked if a bond was needed, or not. Ms. Munro replied it was needed. 
 
Ms. Russell spoke in support of the project. 
 
Mr. Russell asked for an explanation of the proposed project cost sheets. Ms. Munro 
explained that the cost and scope of the project was for the entire project and reviewed 
the grant application as outlined for the Green Mountain Habitat for Humanity Albert’s 
Way budget. The budget did not include a salary for the Town Treasurer, which as 
considered an “in-kind” donation. The building costs were “hard” costs and Ms. 
Winchell’s costs were “soft” costs, said Ms. Munro. 
 
Mr. Delaney asked if another hired person, or a volunteer, could be used to solve the 
grant administration issue. Could someone other than the Town Treasurer sign a check, 
asked Mr. Delaney. Ms. Munro said it was up to the Town and Town policies. As for the 
grant, a Town designate would submit the application, said Ms. Munro.  
 
Ms. Palmer, resident, said that she would volunteer to do the grant administration, or 
anything else that was required. 
 
Ms. Munro explained the application process. If the VCDP accepts the application then 
three affordable units would be built in 2013 and two in 2014. Construction would start in 
April with checks cut for monthly invoices May through December. There would be a 
mid-grant review in May, 2014, and a final review upon completion, said Ms. Munro. 
 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 3 

Mr. Mullin noted that John Owen has volunteered to do the invoice reconciliation and 
associated review tasks. 
 
Mr. Delaney expressed concern that the Selectboard had to ask someone to do a task 
when they had said no. Mr. Mullin said that the VCDP has said they didn’t care who did 
the tasks. Who would cut a check didn’t need to be decided tonight, said Mr. Mullin. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to close the public hearing 
regarding a Vermont Community Development Program grant application to help 
fund the construction of five affordable dwellings. 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve a Resolution for a 
Green Mountain Habitat for Humanity Vermont Community Development 
Program grant application to help fund the construction of five affordable dwellings 
on Albert’s Way. 
VOTE: 3 ayes, 2 nays (Mr. Stone, Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
The Selectboard signed the Resolution document. 
 
BRIDGES 14, 30 & 31 – REVIEW OF TECHNICAL PROPOSALS IN RESPONSE 
TO RFP – action item 
Mr. Hoskin, VTrans representative, reviewed three technical proposals received from 
Dubois and King, VHB, and Stantec. He had visited the Dorset Street Bridge regarding 
the Town’s interest in widening the bridge from one to two lanes. He was a concerned 
regarding a 1960s addition of a bent to the bridge, said Mr. Hoskin. 
 
Mr. Lewis, Charlotte Road Commissioner, spoke in support of a two lane Dorset Street 
Bridge. 
 
Following further discussion , Mr. Ladue said that he ranked the proposals as Stantect 
first, Dubois and King second, and VHB third. 
 
Mr. Hoskin reviewed bridge projects in Ferrisburgh at a cost of $385,000, a Huntington 
bridge for $570,000, and an Essex Town bridge repair of abutments at $450,000. The 
Dorset Street Bridge would need new abutments. He guessed a cost of $700,000 for the 
project. The engineering grant program of $175,000 would be split between the three 
Charlotte bridge projects at $30,000 each, said Mr. Hoskin. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to rank the three engineering 
company responses to an RFP for engineering, permitting, and scoping of bridges 
#14, 30 and 31 to be Stantec, Dubois and King, and VHB. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 nay (Mr. Stone); motion carried. 
 
There was further discussion regarding single lane bridges and making them look like a 
covered bridge. Mr. Hoskin said that two lane bridges were safer, and speeds shouldn’t 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 4 

increase much on that road due to the hilly approaches. It would be easier for the Road 
Commissioner to snow plow. He would prefer either a two lane, or one and one-half lane 
bridge, said Mr. Hoskin. 
 
Mr. Ladue suggested a bridge survey of the Dorset Street residents first. Ms. Illick said if 
a survey was done then it should be a survey of the entire town. The data indicated that 
all three bridges were undersized, said Ms. Illick. 
 
Ms. Russell suggested publicizing the pros and cons of a one lane versus a two lane 
bridge, investigating the costs, and holding a public meeting.  
 
Mr. Bloch said that the cost of a two lane bridge should be investigated before holding a 
public hearing. 
 
Mr. Hoskin pointed out that the grant application process started in February. Let him 
know the Town’s intentions before hand and he would mark a place holder. Permits, 
including a stream alteration permit would be needed, said Mr. Hoskin. 
 
Mr. Russell said that a scoping report that included the cost for a two lane bridge would 
be needed for the March Town Meeting. Mr. Hoskin suggested looking at a history of 
reports and inspection reports of the bridges as a start for an analysis. 
 
Mr. Russell asked staff to add a discussion regarding costs to the next meeting agenda. 
 
TAYLOR HARMELING –REQUEST FOR A HIGHWAY ACCESS PERMIT ON 
MOUNT PHILO ROAD (THE PARCEL HAS A 911 ADDRESS OF 150 PEASE 
MOUNTAIN ROAD) TO ACCESS THE SUBJECT PARCEL AND AN 
ADJACENT PARCEL FOR RESIDENTIAL USE – action item 
Mr. Marshall, Civil Engineering Inc, reviewed that the proposed access was marked with 
white flags. One oak tree on the north side and an existing telephone pole on the south 
side of the access would be retained. The entrance was chosen where there was an 
opening with good site distances. There was plenty of distance between the tree and pole. 
A 15” diameter culvert would be adequate, said Mr. Marshall. 
 
Mr. Lewis, Charlotte Road Commissioner, said that he had inspected the proposed site. 
There were 500’ sight distances each direction. The road was posted at 45 mph. A 30’ x 
15” culvert would be needed, said Mr. Lewis. 
 
Mr. Bloch pointed out that there was a slight slope backward at the entrance from the 
roadway. Mr. Marshall said that a paved apron to pitch water runoff to both sides of the 
driveway was proposed. There was a 2 percent slope. A minimum apron should be at 
least two car lengths long, or 40’. The driveway is 2,000’ long, explained Mr. Marshall. 
 
Mr. Lewis said that any uphill driveway should slope away from the road and at least one 
car length paved. 
 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 5 

MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Delaney, to approve a request by Taylor 
Harmeling for a Highway Access Permit on Mount Philo Road, at a 911 address of 
150 Pease Mountain Road, to access the subject parcel and an adjacent parcel for 
residential use, with conditions and a 30’ x 15” culvert. 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried.  
 
BUDGET REVIEW 
Tree Warden 
Mr. Hamilton, Charlotte Tree Warden, reviewed a proposed FY2013-2014 budget of 
$900 that would cover the cost of maintaining the health of existing planted trees, pay 
mileage for the tree warden and deputy tree warden, and provide for an annual hazard 
tree assessment.  
 
Mr. Stone asked how many hazardous tree cases there were. Mr. Hamilton replied that 
there were many at Thompson’s Point. He did not feel qualified to identify hazardous 
trees. There have been zero hazardous tree law suits. A hazard tree survey done by an 
expert would cost $150, said Mr. Hamilton. 
 
The Board thanked Mr. Hamilton for his service and report. 
 
Road Commissioner 
Mr. Lewis, Charlotte Road Commissioner, reviewed a level funded Highway budget. A 
$77,250 line item would be moved from Gravel Road Upgrade line item to Gravel Road 
Maintenance line item. Funding for bridges was not included in the budget, said Mr. 
Lewis. 
 
There was brief discussion regarding bridge funding, which would not come from the 
Reserve fund. 
 
Ms. Illick expressed concern regarding a posted 35 mph speed limit posted for Lewis 
Creek Road. Mr. Lewis said that all dirt roads in Town were posted at 35 mph with 
regulatory signs as per the Town ordinance. 
 
The Selectboard thanked Mr. Lewis for his report. 
 
Mr. Brooks thanked Mr. Lewis for his many voluntary community contributions to 
various projects. 
 
Housing trust fund 
Ms. Russell, Mr. Pierce and Mr. Brown, Charlotte Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
Committee, reviewed a proposed FY 2013-2014 budget of $500, and grant program. 
With an addition of $30,000 as requested there would be $114,522 total in the fund at end 
of December, said Ms. Russell. 
 
Mr. Ladue asked why there was a $30,000 request if there was $84,522 in the fund. Mr. 
Brown explained that the committee was seeking projects to fund. 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 6 

 
The Selectboard thanked Mr. Brown, Mr. Pierce and Ms. Russell for their report. 
 
Energy Committee 
Ms. Hodgson, Energy Committee representative, reviewed a request for $5,000 for 
FY2013-2014, the same as last year. Matching funds were needed for a possible Clean 
Energy Development grant. An energy savings for energy reductions study results could 
be ready in 6 months, said Ms. Hodgson. 
 
The Selectboard thanked Ms. Hodgson for her report. 
 
Recreation Commission 
Ms. Stone, Recreation Director, and Mr. Harris-Fraser, Recreation Commission member, 
reviewed a proposed FY 2013-2014 budget that included a proposed Charlotte Beach 
playground project. 
 
Mr. Ladue asked to have at least three bids on a Charlotte Beach playground design. Mr. 
Russell asked if the funding for the playground should be an article at Town Meeting, or 
part of the Town budget. 
 
Mr. Owen asked if the current playground would have to be removed if a new one was 
not funded. Ms. Stone replied yes. The playground was not ADA compliant and was of 
wood construction. 
 
Mr. Russell asked the commission to return with quotes for the proposed playground. Mr. 
Ladue suggested putting a place holder in the budget.  
 
Mr. Harris-Fraser reviewed the following: 

• A May work date. 
• Landscaping. 
• Brush hogging currently was voluntarily done at no cost. It could be included in a 

landscaping contractor bid. 
• Whiskey Bay signage would be installed in early summer. 
• “Lakefront clearing” should read “tennis court cleaning”, and put under beach 

maintenance. 
• Added: ice rink fill and rolling of low sections. 

 
The Selectboard thanked Mr. Harris-Fraser and Ms. Stone for their report. 
 
Lewis Creek Association 
Ms. Illick, Lewis Creek Association representative, and Ms. Cummings, Conservation 
Commission representative, reviewed a proposed level funded FY2013-2014 budget of 
$600. A written program plan was submitted for the Town Report.  
 
Ms. Illick said that a Town watershed map could be used as a possible addition to the 
Town Plan.  



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 7 

Ms. Cummings reviewed a Charlotte WatershED educational program. 
 
(NOTE: Mr. Delaney departed the meeting at 9:35 p.m.) 
 
GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER – PETITION TO ADD 31 POLES ALONG ROADS 
ON THOMPSON’S POINT – action item 
Mr. Bushey, Green Mountain Power representative, reviewed a plan to replace 32 power 
poles and noted locations on a site map. Two trees and some tree limbs would be 
removed. Two poles would be installed on Lane’s Lane and the power line on 
Association Way would be removed, said Mr. Bushey. 
 
Mr. Brown asked if the lines could be underground versus on poles. Mr. Bushey 
explained that undergrounding would require blasting, which would impact foundations 
and septics. GMP would remove 35 poles and put in 32 new poles, said Mr. Bushey. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve a petition by Green 
Mountain Power to add 32 poles along the roads on Thompson’s Point and remove 
35 poles as presented. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
The four Selectboard members signed the petition document. 
 
GRANT FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING FROM THE CHARLOTTE HOUSING 
TRUST FUND – action item 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve a grant for an 
affordable housing project from the Charlotte Housing Trust Fund. 
DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Owen asked if the overall grant was for $30,000. Ms. Russell replied yes. Dick 
St George’s proposal was for $29,000 plus $1,000. The affordable housing 
agreement document language was changed to accommodate Mr. Nichols’ existing 
tenants, said Ms. Russell. Mr. Brown said that the altered agreement included 
income information requirements for new renters of the Nichols rental units. 
 
Mr. Stone asked why not put language in the deeds. Ms. Russell explained it was a 
rental agreement. There was a policy that potential renters must provide income 
information that includes W-2 forms. The information was not tracked, which 
should be done, said Ms. Russell. 
 
Mr. Russell suggested that the language include “…except in this instance.” 
 
AMENDMENT to the motion by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to add: ‘…per 
the agreement as amended’, and to authorize the Charlotte Selectboard Chair to 
sign the document on behalf of the Town of Charlotte. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
  
MINUTES: October 29, and November 12, 2012 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    11/26/2012 PAGE 8 

MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve the Charlotte 
Selectboard minutes of 10/29/2012 as written, with addition. 
VOTE: 3 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney), 1 abstention (Mr. Stone); motion carried. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Stone, to approve the Charlotte 
Selectboard minutes of 11/12/2012 as written. 
VOTE: 3 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney), 1 abstention (Mr. Ladue); motion carried. 
 
SELECTBOARD UPDATES 
Mr. Russell noted that Selectboard members needed to attend Selectboard meetings. For 
example, a forensic audit should be ready for the 12/10/2012 meeting. Future meetings 
were scheduled for 12/17 (in place of the 12/24 meeting), 01/14/2013 and 01/28/2013. 
 
Mr. Owen suggested conducting a town wide speed limit survey regarding the posted 
road signs. Mr. Russell suggested waiting to see if the signs continued to be an issue, and 
asked staff to put it on a future agenda. 
 
APPROVE WARRANTS TO PAY BILLS 
The Selectboard members signed bills and warrants. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to adjourn the meeting. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, Kathlyn Furr, Recording Secretary 
 


